



LC Operations Manual Summary of Additions & Revisions as of December 2024 from 2024 AM

2024 LC AM Additions & Revisions – All changes are noted in **RED**

Section 1-Articles of Continuance removed as follows: (Effective 2024)

~~**1 SECTION 1 ARTICLES OF CONTINUANCE**~~

~~The Letters Patent incorporating Lacrosse Canada were registered by the Department of Consumer and Corporate Affairs of the Government of Canada (now Industry Canada) in Ottawa on November 8, 1974. Supplementary Letters Patent were also issued on April 20, 1990 to change the name of Lacrosse Canada to make it bilingual.~~

~~The following represent the Articles of Continuance as approved on August 28, 2014 for continuance under the Canada Not for Profit Corporations Act~~

~~The name is: Lacrosse Canada — Crosse Canada~~

~~CORPORATION NUMBER: 904783~~

~~THE PROVINCE OR TERRITORY IN CANADA WHERE THE REGISTERED OFFICE IS SITUATED: — Ontario
MINIMUM AND MAXIMUM NUMBER OF DIRECTORS (FOR A FIXED NUMBER, INDICATE THE SAME NUMBER IN BOTH BOXES)~~

~~————— Minimum — 12~~

~~————— Maximum — 12~~

~~STATEMENT OF THE PURPOSE OF THE CORPORATION~~

~~The Corporation has as its exclusive function the promotion of the sport of lacrosse on a nation-wide basis in Canada. In furtherance of this function, the purposes of the Corporation are to:~~

- ~~• Promote and perpetuate the game of lacrosse as Canada’s national summer sport~~
- ~~• Serve as the governing body for the sport of lacrosse in Canada;~~
- ~~• Be an official representative of Canadian lacrosse to other national and international governing bodies;~~
- ~~• Foster growth and development of lacrosse in Canada, and assist member associations in the development of the game within their jurisdictions;~~
- ~~• Foster growth and development of lacrosse internationally;~~
- ~~• Establish standards for, provide sanction of, and oversee competitions over which the Corporation has jurisdiction;~~
- ~~• Establish and publish the rules and regulations of the game of lacrosse;~~
- ~~• Host international lacrosse competitions and events;~~
- ~~• Manage a national team program and select national teams to represent Canada in international competition; and~~
- ~~• Receive money and other property, by gift, bequest, fees or otherwise, and to apply same in furtherance of these purposes.~~



The Corporation may carry on related business activities in furtherance of these purposes, such as selling merchandise related to lacrosse and to national teams, and engaging in limited non-partisan political activities.

RESTRICTIONS ON THE ACTIVITIES THAT THE CORPORATION MAY CARRY ON, IF ANY: ~~None~~

~~LCSSES, OR REGIONAL OR OTHER GROUPS, OF MEMBERS THAT THE CORPORATION IS AUTHORIZED TO ESTABLISH~~

The Corporation has one class of members, which is lacrosse organizations. Members have a weighted vote based upon the formula specified in the Bylaws, which is as follows: Each member is entitled to receive notice, to attend and to vote at all meetings of the Members of the Corporation.

Registered Players per Sector per Category and Number of Votes

Less than 30 ~~0~~ vote

31 to 250 ~~1~~ vote

251 to 500 ~~2~~ votes

501 to 1000 ~~3~~ votes

Over 1000 ~~4~~ votes

Sectors are: Men's Field, Women's Field and Box

Categories are: Minor, Intermediate/Junior and Senior

Each member is entitled to receive notice, to attend and to vote at all meetings of the Members of the Corporation.

STATEMENT REGARDING THE DISTRIBUTION OF PROPERTY REMAINING ON LIQUIDATION

Any property remaining on liquidation of the Corporation after discharge of liabilities, shall be distributed to one or more qualified donees within the meaning of the *Income Tax Act* (Canada), as determined by the Board of Directors.

ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS, IF ANY

The business and affairs of the Corporation will be carried on without the purpose of gain for its Members and any profits or other accretions to the Corporation will be used in promoting its purposes.

A Special Resolution of the Members is required to make any changes to the Bylaws of the Corporation.

By Laws 33-64 updated as follows: (Effective 2024)

33. The Corporation will have ~~twelve~~ **ten** Directors, as follows:

- a) ~~President~~
- b) ~~Director Administration~~
- c) ~~Director Marketing and Communications~~
- d) ~~Director High Performance and International Relations~~



- e) Director National Championships
- f) Director Domestic Development
- g) Athlete Director
- h) Indigenous Director
- i) Four Directors-at-Large
- a) Eight (8) Directors-at-Large
- b) One (1) Athlete Director
- c) One (1) Indigenous Director

34. The President, Director Administration, Director Marketing and Communications, Director National Championships and Director Domestic Development will be elected by the Members. The Director High Performance and International Relations will be nominated by the National Lacrosse Team Players Association (NLTPA), who shall nominate one candidate (based in Canada) who must be familiar with and supportive of the activities of both LC and the National Team. Ideally, the candidate is someone who is respected by both the NLTPA and LC and has strong organizational and interpersonal skills. If the President and Executive Director of LC agree on the acceptability of the candidate, they will recommend that candidate to the board and Members for approval. If the President, Executive Director, LC Board or Members rejects this candidate, the NLTPA will be asked to submit a new candidate. The Athlete Director will be from the alumni of National Teams, or National Team staff, not a current coach of any Team Canada team and elected by the Members. The Indigenous Director will be nominated by the First Nations Association Member and elected by the Members. The four Directors-at-Large will be nominated by the Member Council and elected by the Members.

The Athlete Director will be nominated by the National Team athletes, meet the definition of Athlete, and be elected by the Members. The Indigenous Director will be nominated by the First Nations Lacrosse Association and appointed by the Board for a one (1) year term by way of Ordinary Resolution. The eight (8) Directors-at-Large will be nominated by the Nominations Committee and elected by the Members.

35. Any person, who is 18 years of age or older, who has the power under law to contract, who has not been declared incapable by a court in Canada or in another country, who fulfills the requirements of the Income Tax Act related to serving as a director of a registered charity, who does not have the status of bankrupt, may be nominated for election as a Director. Persons who are employees of Members are not eligible to be elected as Directors.

36. No individual currently serving as an employee or contractor of the Corporation may be a Director. No Director may become the Executive Director or interim Executive Director of the Corporation during their term as a Director or for twelve months thereafter.

37. ~~Not more than sixty (60%) percent~~ At least forty percent (40%) of the Directors must identify as the minority gender identity. That is, since there are ~~twelve (12) Directors on the Board~~ ten (10) Directors on the Board, at least ~~seven (7)~~ four (4) Directors must identify ~~as the same~~ as the minority gender identity.

38. ~~At least forty percent (40%)~~ Not more than 60% of the Directors ~~must identify as the minority gender identity~~ can be of the same gender. ~~That is, since there are~~ If there are ten (10) Directors on the Board, ~~at least four (4) Directors must identify as the minority gender identity.~~ no more than six can identify as a majority gender identity.

39. No more than three (3) Directors may be from the same province/territory and no more than four (4) Directors may be from the same Member.



~~39. A Director's term of office will be two years, on a staggered basis:~~

- ~~a) The President, Director Marketing and Communications, Director National Championships, Indigenous Director and two Directors at Large will be elected in odd-numbered years; and~~
- ~~b) The Director Administration, Director Domestic Development, Director High Performance and International Relations, will be elected in even-numbered years; and~~
- ~~c) Director's may not serve more than three consecutive full terms, in the same position.~~
- ~~d) No Director will hold their position for more than three consecutive two-year elected terms, unless their position is uncontested at the Annual Meeting of the Members.~~
- ~~e) No Director will hold office for more than nine (9) years.~~

40. Director's term of office will be three years in the following rotation:

- a) Three (3) Directors-at-Large
- b) Two (2) Directors-at-Large and one (1) Athlete Director
- c) Three (3) Directors-at-Large

41. The Indigenous Director will hold office for a term of one (1) year subject to reappointment for more than nine (9) consecutive terms. The number of appointed Directors cannot exceed more than one-third (1/3) of the elected Directors on an annual basis.

42. No Director, excluding the Indigenous Director, may hold office for more than three (3) consecutive terms.

~~40.~~ 43. A Nominations Committee, appointed by the Board, will endeavour to ensure that candidates for election consist of a diverse selection of individuals; including athletes, visible minorities, geographic residence, and gender identity.

~~41.~~ 44. Any nomination of an individual for election must be member in good standing with both their registered MA and LC, and if not a member, endorsed by the MA in which the individual resides. The nomination must include the written consent of the nominee, endorsement of the MA and must be submitted to the registered office of the Corporation 30 days prior to the Annual Meeting. The nomination will also include a statement describing how they are Independent (or how they will become Independent within thirty (30) days following their election).

~~42.~~ 45. Nominations will be circulated to the Members 21 days prior to the Annual Meeting, and elections will take place at the Annual Meeting. In the event there are no nominations for a position for which an election is to occur submitted within the timelines, an individual may be nominated from the floor of the Annual Meeting.

~~43.~~ 46. To ensure that sixty percent (60%) of the Directors identify as the same gender identity, **ensuring compliance with By-Laws 38**, the Nominations Committee will determine the gender identity of each Director on the Board whose term is not expiring at the meeting of the Members and present nominees that maintain the necessary **gender** diversity. If there are seven (7) individuals who identify as one gender identity, nominees of that same gender identity will not be permitted to stand for election. If there are more nominees than available positions, the nominee(s) receiving the greatest number of votes will be elected provided the gender identity **quota ratio is compliant. has not been reached. For clarity** If there are



six (6) individuals of the same gender identity serving on the Board, only one (1) Director of that gender identity may be elected to the Board and the remaining nominees of that gender identity are not permitted to be elected once that individual has been elected.

~~44- 47.~~ If required, the Nominations Committee will use the same procedure described above to ensure that at least 40% of the Directors on the Board are Independent. ~~The Committee may also use the same procedure to ensure geographic quotas (per Section 414 of these By-laws).~~

~~45- 48.~~ A Director may resign from the Board at any time by presenting their notice of resignation to the Board. This resignation will become effective the date on which the request is accepted by the Board.

~~46-49.~~ The office of any Director will be vacated automatically if the Director:

- a) Becomes disqualified, per the Act;
- b) Upon the Director's death.

~~47- 50.~~ A Director may be removed by Ordinary Resolution of the Members at a meeting of Members, provided the Director has been given notice of and the opportunity to be heard at such a meeting. If the Director is removed and holds a position as an Officer, the Director will automatically and simultaneously be removed from the position as an Officer.

~~48- 51.~~ ~~Where the position of a Director~~ In the event that a position on the Board of Directors becomes vacant for whatever reason, including resignation, removal, incapacity, or death, the remaining Directors ~~the Board~~ may appoint a qualified individual to fill the vacancy ~~for the remainder of the vacant position's term.~~ The appointment shall remain in effect until the next Meeting of the Members at which time the members will fill the position for the remainder of the original term.

~~49- 52.~~ The President or any three (3) Directors may call a meeting of the Board.

~~50- 53.~~ Notice of meetings of the Board will be given to all Directors at least seven days prior to the scheduled meeting. No notice of a meeting of the Board is required if the majority of Directors waive notice.

~~51- 54.~~ At any meeting of the Board, quorum will be a majority of Directors holding office.

~~52- 55~~ All members will have the opportunity to vote at meetings of the Board. In the event of a tie, the motion will fail and be dismissed.

~~53- 56.~~ A meeting of the Board may be held by means of telephone, electronic or other communication facility that permits all participants to communicate adequately with each other during the meeting, if the Corporation makes available such a communication facility. The Board must meet a minimum of 6 meetings a year.

~~54- 57.~~ Except as otherwise provided in the Act or these Bylaws, the Board has the powers of the Corporation and may delegate any of its powers, duties and functions. More specifically, the Board will:

- a) Approve the vision, mission, values and strategic direction of the Corporation;
- b) Subject to the authority delegated to any Sector or Committee by its terms of reference, approve policies, procedures, rules and regulations to deliver the programs and services of the Corporation, provided that at any meeting of the Members, the Members may, by Ordinary Resolution, amend such policies, procedures, rules and regulations;
- c) Provide continuity for the Corporation by ensuring its financial health;



- d) Engage under employment contract an Executive Director to manage and oversee the operations of the Corporation;
- e) Ensure positive relationships with stakeholders; and
- f) Perform any other duties from time to time as may be in the best interests of the Corporation.

~~55- 58.~~ The Officers of the Corporation are the President, Director Administration and Executive Director, who will also serve as Corporate Secretary.

~~59.~~ The President and Director Administration will be elected by the Board for a one-year, two-year, or three-year term (specified by the individual prior to their running for the position) provided that their specified term length does not exceed their term as a Director.

~~60.~~ Directors may nominate themselves for any Officer position. Elections will begin with the election for President. Once a Director is elected to an Officer position, they may not nominate themselves for another Officer position. Elections will be decided by majority vote of the Directors in accordance with the following:

- a) One Valid Nominee for an Office – Winner declared by acclamation.
- b) Two or More Valid Nominees for an Office – Winner is the nominee receiving the greatest number of votes. In the case of a tie, a runoff vote will be conducted. Only those nominees who were tied for the most number of votes will appear on the run-off ballot. The nominee receiving the greatest number of votes will be declared the winner. Additional runoff votes may occur if required

~~56- 61.~~ The *President* will be responsible for the general supervision of the affairs of the Corporation, will preside at meetings of Members and at meetings of the Board, will be responsible for the operation of the Board, will be the official spokesperson of the Corporation, will oversee an annual Board review process, and will perform such other duties as may from time to time be established by the Board.

~~57- 62.~~ The *Director Administration* will be responsible for overseeing the finances of the Corporation, strategic and operational planning, office administration and operations, and Corporation governance. He/she will ensure the care and custody of all the funds and securities of the Corporation in such banks or other financial institutions as the Board of Directors may direct and will perform such other duties as may from time to time be established by the Board. The Director Administration will act for the President if the President is unable to act.

~~58- 63.~~ The *Executive Director*, who is not a Director but may attend meetings of the Board by standing invitation in a non-voting capacity, will be charged with the duties of the Corporate Secretary and will perform such duties as are required by the Act, other government agencies, and the Corporation through its Governance Policies. If required, third party consultants and legal counsel may be contracted by the Corporation to aid the Executive Director if the Director Administration so approves. The Executive Director will be responsible for the management and supervision of the operations of the Corporation.

~~59- 64.~~ In an emergency situation where action must be taken by the Corporation in the best interests of lacrosse and it is not reasonably possible to convene a meeting of the Board, the Officers may take action that the Board or Sector or Committee may take except in relation to an expenditure of funds over



\$10,000. In such case, the Officers will take reasonable steps to consult with as many Directors and Sector or Committee Chairpersons, as the case may be, as is reasonably possible for their opinion prior to making the decision.

~~60-~~ 65. The Board may appoint such Committees as it deems necessary for managing the affairs of the Corporation and may appoint members of Committees, may prescribe the duties of Committees, and may delegate to any Committee any of its powers, duties, and functions except where prohibited by the Act, the Articles or these Bylaws.

~~66.~~ The Board will establish, at minimum, the following committees: Nominations, Governance and Ethics, and Audit and Finance.

~~64-~~ 67. The Members of the Corporation will establish discipline Sectors in Box Lacrosse, Men's Field Lacrosse, Women's Field Lacrosse and Sixes which have technical authority over the activities and development of the disciplines, in accordance with the Corporation's mission, strategic direction, priorities and policy framework, as outlined in the Sectors' respective term of reference. Newly established Sectors' Terms of Reference and Policy will be prepared for the next Annual or Semi-Annual meeting after approval.

~~62-~~ 68. The Board will establish the terms of reference for all Committees and Sectors. All terms of reference with the exception of Committees must be approved by a Special Resolution of the Members. Further, all terms of reference, as well as Directors at Large, Athlete Director and Indigenous Director criteria will be inserted into the Bylaws as Appendices and referenced in each relevant area.

~~63-~~ 69. Unless the terms of reference state otherwise, the Board may appoint a qualified individual to fill any vacancy on a Committee, and the Board may remove any member of any Committee.

~~64-~~ 70. The President will be an ex-officio and non-voting member of all Committees and Sectors of the Corporation.



Policy 22.6 and 22.6.1 Minimum Coaching Standards updated as follows: (Effective 2025)

Update title to 22.6 Minimum Coaching Standards for all Sectors (disciplines) Change policy 22.6.1 to the table provided. In order to facilitate this change, the following policies will need to be removed: 18.7, 19.6, 20.6 and 21.6

Minimum Coaching Standards – across all disciplines

Category	Club Minimum	Provincial Team Minimum Standard	National Teams Minimum Standard
U7	Community Initiation	N/A	N/A
U9	Community Initiation	N/A	N/A
House League	Recommend: Community Initiation	N/A	N/A
U11	Community Development Trained	N/A	N/A
U13	Community Development Trained	Competition Introduction Certified	N/A
U15	Competition Introduction Trained	Competition Introduction Certified	N/A
U17	Competition Introduction Trained	Competition Introduction Certified	N/A
Canada Summer Games	N/A	Competition Development Certified *2025 – Head Coach ONLY; others trained	N/A
U19	Competition Introduction Trained	Competition Introduction Certified	N/A
Junior	Competition Introduction Trained	Competition Introduction Certified	N/A
Senior	Competition Introduction Trained	Competition Introduction Certified	N/A
National Teams	N/A	N/A	Box - Competition Development Certified M/W Field – Competition Introduction Certified Sixes – in development
Learning Facilitator Certification:			
Category	Community Initiation	Community Development	Competition Introduction / Comp Development
Learning Facilitators	NCCP E-Learning Module	Competition Introduction Certified	Competition Development Certified(if available)
NOTES:			
<ul style="list-style-type: none"> • Head Coaches and Assistant Coaches will be held to the same standard at ALL levels (exception: CSG for 2025) • NCCP E-learning Module of Making Headway and Emergency Action Plan (EAP) must be completed by <u>all coaches</u> 			



Policy 24.3.3.1.13-Box Lacrosse National Championships and Competitions updated as follows (Effective 2025)

24.3.2.6: U17 (~~Male Open and Female~~), U15 (~~Male Open and Female~~), U13 (~~Male Open and Female~~), and Junior Women: Only one representative from each MA at each minor level meeting the criteria as set out, will be allowed to enter a National Competition.

24.3.3.1. 13: Female U13 Championship Cup (donated by Sask Lacrosse)

Policy 24.3.3.2.2-Box Lacrosse National Championships and Competitions updated as follows: (Effective 2025)

The Host Committee shall award the members of Canadian Championships or Competition teams suitable medals, plaques or other such award as deemed appropriate by LC in the following amounts:

24.3.3.2.4 Major Competition - 30

24.3.3.2.2 Minor Competition - 30

Policy 24.4.3.4-Men’s Field National Championships and Competitions updated as follows: (Effective 2025)

24.4.3.4 Any MA wishing to host a national championship when it is their turn in the rotation must notify LC office and Men’s Field Sector Chair no later than January 15th in the year preceding the championship.

ADD the rotations approved by the MF Sector in Sector meeting.

Rotation Year	Alumni/First Nations	Ross
2024	Alberta	Cancelled for 2024
2025	Nova Scotia	Saskatchewan
2026	Manitoba	FNLA
2027	Saskatchewan	Ontario
2028	FNLA	Alberta
2029	Ontario	Nova Scotia
2030	BC	Manitoba
2031	Quebec	New Brunswick
2032	New Brunswick	BC
2033	PEI	PEI



Policy 24.7.3.2-Sanction of Host updated as follows: (Effective 2025)

24.7.3.2 The hosting rights are awarded to a MA in good standing and are conditional on the MA remaining in good standing with LC. ~~Participation by a team from the MA in the championship or competition in the year prior to hosting is also required.~~

Policy 24.7.3.3-Sanction of Host updated as follows: (Effective 2025)

24.7.3.3 MAs must give notice of intent to host no later than January 15th in the year preceding the championship. An Application with bid to host must be submitted by ~~the~~ MAs by March 30 for inclusion with ~~at~~ the SAM package ~~to the appropriate Sector~~ in the year preceding the competition. The ~~notice of intent and~~ Application must be submitted to the LC Office and Sector Chair and must identify a Host Committee. The Sector will review and select the Host.

Policy 24.17.1.3-Officials to National Championships and Competitions updated as follows: (Effective 2025)

24.17.1.3 The MAs shall provide LC Officiating ~~Committee Sector~~ Chairperson with a list of officials to work at the National Championships and Competitions by June 15 for Minor Box, and by July 1 for other championships.

Policy 24.17.1.5-Officials to National Championships and Competitions updated as follows: (Effective 2025)

Note 2: Per diem for competition days must be paid at the start of the event. Meal allowance per 13.10.8, corrected for meals provided with the hotel stay if applicable. The payment method must be agreed-upon between the Host Committee and OIC. Per diem is not provided on travel days.

Policy 24.17.3.1.3-Officials to National Championships and Competitions updated as follows: (Effective 2025)

24.17.3.1.3 Airline Transportation expenses include flight cost and one checked bag. Seat selection is not included as seats can be selected free of charge 24 hours prior to departure. Mileage for travel to and from the home airport and airport parking are not included.

Policy 24.24.1.2.3 and 24.24.1.2.4-Tiebreaking- Proposal A updated as follows: (Effective 2025)



24.24.1 In the event of a tie in point standings in a competition, final standings shall be determined as follows:

24.24.1.1 In the event of a tie in points between **two (2)** teams the final standings shall be determined as follows:

24.24.1.1.1 The team that won the greater number of points in games played, during the competition, between the teams tied shall be declared the winner of the higher position. **(HEAD TO HEAD)**

24.24.1.1.2 If tie still exists, the Goal Average Formula will be used to break the tie. All goals scored in ~~the all~~ games involving tied teams during the competition shall be used in the goal average formula computation. (~~See Goal Average Formula Below~~) . Maximum goal differential for Goals Average Formula is 12 goals, by reducing the # of Goals For.

Example, a score of 15 – 1 will be reduced to 13 – 1 before using the goal formula computation.

Goal Average Formula

Goals For divided by sum of Goals for plus Goals Against.

GOAL AVERAGE = Goals For

Goals For + Goals Against

24.24.1.1.3 If a tie still exists, the team with least penalties in minutes per minutes played in all ~~Round Robin competition~~ games shall be ~~declared the winner. In the case where the teams have not played the same number of games, the lowest average of the penalties in minutes in all Round Robin games shall be used to declare the winner~~ seeded higher in standings.

24.24.1.1.4 If a tie still exists, the team with the greatest number of penalties per minutes played in all competition games played shall be seeded higher in standings.

24.24.1.1.5 If a tie still exists, the team that scored a goal the closest to the start of their competition play shall be seeded higher in standings.

24.24.1.1.4 6 If a tie still exists then a coin toss ~~will decide the winner~~ shall decide team seeded higher in standings.

24.24.1.2 In the event of a tie in points between three (3) or more teams the final standings shall be determined as follows:



24.24.1.2.1 The team(s) that won the greater number of points in games played, during the competition, between the team(s) tied shall be ~~declared the winner of the seeded~~ higher ~~position in standings~~. (HEAD TO HEAD TO HEAD)

24.24.1.2.2 If any or all the teams are still tied after the seeding of teams under 24.24.1.2.1, the Goal Average Formula will be used to break the tie. Only goals scored in games between the tied teams during the competition shall be used in the goal average ~~formula~~ computation. ~~(See Goal Average Formula)~~
Goal Average Formula

Goals For divided by sum of Goals for plus Goals Against.

GOAL AVERAGE = Goals For

Goals For + Goals Against

The teams are seeded in standings in descending order of computation results.

24.24.1.2.3 If ~~tie still exists, the Goal Average Formula will be used to break the tie.~~ any or all the teams remain tied after 24.24.1.2.2, then all goals scored in all games during the competition shall be used in the goal average ~~formula~~ computation. ~~(See Goal Average Formula Below)~~ Maximum goal differential for Goals Average Formula is 12 goals, by reducing the # of Goals For. Example, a score of 15 – 1 will be reduced to 13 – 1 before using the goal formula computation.

The teams are seeded in standings in descending order of computation results.

24.24.1.2.4 If ~~a tie still exists~~, any or all the teams remain tied after 24.24.1.2.3 the team(s) will be seeded in ascending order of ~~with the least~~ penalties in minutes per minutes played in all ~~Round Robin~~ competition games. Least penalty minutes for higher seed. ~~played shall be declared the winner. In the case where the teams have not played the same number~~ The Goal Average Formula is defined as follows:

Goal Average Formula

GOAL AVERAGE = Goals For

Goals For + Goals Against

The team with goal average closest to 1.0 shall be declared the winner

24.24.1.2.5 If any or all the teams remain tied after 24.24.1.2.4, the team with the greatest number of penalties in all competition games played shall be seeded higher in standings.



24.24.1.2.6 If any or all the teams remain tied after 24.24.1.2.5, the team that scored a goal the closest to the start of their competition play shall be seeded higher in standings.

24.24.1.2.7 If any or all the teams remain tied after 24.24.1.2.6, a round-robin of Coin Tosses will decide the order of seeding in standings.

Policy 24.33.1 - Player Eligibility updated as follows: (Effective 2025)

24.33.1 Player Eligibility

24.33.1.7 You can register up to 25 players.

24.33.1.8 You can only dress 18 players and 2 goalies

Appendix 25-13 – Calendar of LC National Championships updated as follows: (Effective 2025)

-Update Notice of Attendance and Entry Fee Deadline dates for Alumni Cup & First Nations Cup to June 15

-Add dates, duration, team eligibility and number of teams for Junior Women’s.

APPENDIX 25-13: CALENDAR OF LC NATIONAL CHAMPIONSHIPS

Championship	AUGUST				SEPTEMBER		OCTOBER
	1st Week	2nd Week	3rd Week	Final Week	Labour Day W/E	2nd-3rd Week	Thanksgiving W/E
U13 (Box)							
U15 (Box)							
U17 (Box)							
U22 Women's (Box)							
Founders - Jr. B (Box)							
Minto - Jr. A (Box)							
President's - Sr. B (Box)							
Mann - Sr. A (Box)							
Alumni - U17 (MF)							
First Nations - U19 (MF)							
Ross - Sr. A (MF)							
Victory - Sr. B (MF)							
Jenny Kyle - Jr. (WF)							
Robertson - Sr. (WF)							

Championship	Age	Site Selection	Duration	Team Eligibility	Teams/MA	Notice of Attendance	Entry Fee Deadline
U13 Minor (Box)	11-12 yrs.	Bid	7 days	Prov. All-Stars	1	Jan. 31	Apr. 30
U15 Minor (Box)	13-14 yrs.	Bid	7 days	Prov. All-Stars	1	Jan. 31	Apr. 30
U15 Girls (Box)	13-14 yrs.	Bid	4 days	Prov. All-Stars	1	Jan. 31	Apr. 30
U17 Minor (Box)	15-17 yrs.	Bid	7 days	Prov. All-Stars	1	Jan. 31	Apr. 30
U17 Girls (Box)	15-17 yrs.	Bid	7 days	Prov. All-Stars	1	Jan. 31	Apr. 30
Junior Women's (Box)	21 & Under	Bid	7 days	Prov. All-Stars	1	Jan 31	Apr 30
Founders - Jr. B (Box)	21 & Under	Rotation	9 days	Clubs	1 + host	Jun. 1	Jun. 1
Minto - Jr. A (Box)	21 & Under	Rotation	9 days	Clubs	1 + host	n/a	n/a
President's - Sr. B (Box)	22+ yrs.	Rotation	9 days	Clubs	1 + host	Jun. 1	Jun. 1
Mann - Sr. A (Box)	22+ yrs.	Rotation	11 days	Clubs	1	n/a	n/a
Alumni - U17 (MF)	14-15 yrs.	Rotation	4 days	Prov. All-Stars	1	Jul-5 June 15	Jul-5 June 15
First Nations - U19 (MF)	16-18 yrs.	Rotation	4 days	Prov. All-Stars	1	Jul-5 June 15	Jul-5 June 15
Ross - Sr. A (MF)	20+ yrs.	Rotation	3 days	Clubs	1 + host	Aug. 9	Aug. 9
Victory - Sr. B (MF)	20+ yrs.	Rotation	3 days	Clubs	1 + host	Aug. 9	Aug. 9
Jenny Kyle - Jr. (WF)	15-16 yrs.	Bid	3 days	Prov. All-Stars	1	Jun. 1	Jun. 1
Robertson - Sr. (WF)	17-19 yrs.	Bid	3 days	Prov. All-Stars	1	Jun. 1	Jun. 1

* The first week of a month is understood to be the first week containing a Friday.